# LT512S

# **USB to DMX interface**



**Datasheet &** 

**Quickstart Guide** 

# Table des matières

Introduction	1
Main features	
Hardware technical specifications	
Software options	2
Housing connectivity	
Front panel	
Rear panel	
USB drivers installation	4
Multiple USB connections	
Standalone mode settings	5
Device configuration	
IN/OUT tab	5
"Merge DMX In / DMX Out" option	
Art-Net/sACN universe range:	
Options tab	7
Commands tab	
Scenes selection and configuration	9
Choice of triggers	
Infrared Trigger	
External contacts Trigger:	
Advanced trigger options.	
Restore after power off	
Play in priority	
Save in memory option	
Basic backup	
Save to an internal and external micro SD card	
Backing up Art-Net or sACN to an external SD card	
Stand-alone use	
Switch to stand-alone mode	
External and USB power supply	
How to use IR Remote	
Previous Remote Control Unit (Before 2022)	
Functioning for Interfaces without Mode and older interfaces.	
Functioning for Interfaces with Modes	
New Remote Control Unit (2022)	
Functioning for Interfaces with Modes	
Functions descriptions	
IR Codes	
IR receiver box	
Housing dimensions in mm	

Front	
Back	
Tops	
Troubleshooting	

# Introduction

Our professional package for entry-level budgets and users seeking an easy-to-operate DMX control system.

Newly designed aluminium housing with beautiful finish and updated electronics that work with all the latest 2022 Chromateq software (as well as older versions of LED Player and Pro DMX).

Capable of 3 trigger options and equipped with DC 5V input this USB to DMX controller includes USB 5V power supply and an optional infrared remote control in the package. It is the perfect hardware for easy integration projects.

### **Objectives**

The purpose of this technical manual is to develop the options managed by the interface in standalone mode, for software options, please refer to the software manuals

# **Main features**

### Hardware technical specifications

Input	USB 2.0 via USB-C
Number of DMX Outputs	Up to 128 or 512 on 3 pin XLR (XLR5 optional)
DMX Speed	1 to 45 Hz, MaB, Bk
Stand Alone Mode	Yes, 128 or 512 channels, fine DMX channels (16 bits)
Internal Memory	Yes (200 Kb)
Memory Capacity	200 to 2000 memory steps
Infra-red Receiver	Yes, (IR remote control for triggers available in option)
Infra-red Options	Scene selection, play, pause, speed, dimmer, next, black out
Dry Contact Triggers	Yes (3 smart contacts port with 7 actions max)
Power Supply Input	5V, 0,1A
High voltage Protection	Yes
Housing	Strong Aluminium
Infrared remote	optional, need IR Kit
USB Mode	Yes
Display of signal states	USB LED
Power	0,5 W
CPU's technology	32 bits
Dimensions	H : 55mm(2.16in) / W : 50mm(1.96in) / D : 37,5mm (1.47in)
Weight	0.085 Kgs
Package total weight	0.15 Kgs
Colour	Black

IP rating	IP40
Place of Use	Indoor
Storage	Keep in dry place
Compatibility	8 and 16 bits DMX 512 fixtures
Operating Temperature	-25 to +70 C°
Certifications	CE, RoHS, Fcc
International Warranty	Yes, 1 year

# Software options

PLAYER , PRO, PRO2	128 or 512 channels Live and Stand Alone
Studio DMX 3D viewer	Yes, real time
Art-Net Output from PC	No
System Compatibility	Windows, MAC Os X (10.6 and higher) and Linux (64 Bits)
Free Software Updates	Yes

# **Front panel**



XLR Connector 3 pins 1: Ground 2: Data -

3: Data +

Infrared Receiver LED, (Remote unit is optional)

# **Rear panel**



USB-C Connector (5V DC input)

### **Green USB Signal LED**

Terminal Block Connector with screws

- 1 to 3: Trigger A, B, C
- 4: Power output for triggers A, B, C, 5V DC
- 5: Power Input 5V DC; 0,1A or VCC (V+)
- 6: Ground (V-)

### **USB Signal LED operating states**

OFF	Interface not powered (check the USB cable or the power supply)
ON	Interface powered, No scene is playing
Fast Blinking	USB communication running with the software
Slow Blinking	Stand Alone mode and playing a scene
Flashing very fast	In bootloader mode, waiting to load a new firmware

# **USB** drivers installation

Install USB drivers to communicate with the device and change settings. Installation of USB drivers is required only for Windows at the end of installation. Drivers for Mac and Linux systems are installed automatically.

### USB drivers verification :

In the Windows Device Manager. Check that the device icon is visible in "USB Bus Controllers".

Ö Contrôleurs de bus USB
 Ö DMX512 Stand Alone Device

If drivers are not installed, the Windows Device Manager lists a device with a yellow warning.

Universal Serial Bus controllers

On Mac OS, simply check the USB device tree to view "DMX 512 Stand Alone Device". On Linux, use the "Isusb" command to view "DMX 512 Stand Alone Device" as a list.

### After control software installation and USB drivers

- Connect the device with the USB cable.
- Start the DEVICETOOL or the software and select "Open USB Device" or "USB" to check the success of drivers installation.

All connected and detected devices are listed.

# **Multiple USB connections**



# Standalone mode settings



In standalone mode of the control software, **configure the device according to the** available options then select and configure the triggers of scenes to be written in memory.

# **Device configuration**

### **IN/OUT** tab

Select a DMX input/Output configuration of the interface from the drop-down menu

💮 In / Out Config	Clock 8	🗘 Options 🛛 🗖 Master / Slave 🧹 – Commands 🔄 Zones	
	In / Out Config :	A Out 🔹 Merge Dmx In / Dmx Out 🥐	
		A Out	
	DMX A :	AB Out A Out / D In	
		ABC Out	
	DMX B :	ABCD Out	
		AB Out / D In	
	DMX C :	ABC Out / D In	
	DMX D :	Channels:	
	ArtNet / sACN :	U1 • <===> U2 •	

Available configurations will be displayed depending on the connected device depending on whether it has 1.2 or 4 DMX lines.

- **A OUT** Assigns 1 output universe on the DMX line(s), for devices that have more than 1 DMX lines duplicate the universe on each.
- **AB OUT** Assigns 1 different output universe on 2 DMX lines, for devices that have 4 DMX lines duplicates the first 2 lines on the next 2 lines.
- A OUT/B or D IN Assigns 1 output universe on the first line(s) and uses the last DMX line as DMX input.
- **ABC OUT** Assigns 1 different universe output on the first 3 DMX lines.
- **ABCD OUT** Assigns 1 different universe output on 4 DMX lines.
- **AB OUT / D IN -** Assigns 1 different output universe on the first 2 lines and uses the last DMX line as DMX input.
- **ABC OUT / D IN -** Assigns 1 different output universe on the first 3 lines and uses the last DMX line as DMX input.

### "Merge DMX In / DMX Out" option

### Available with interfaces with more than 2 or 4 DMX lines.

Enable the option to re-inject line configured as an input (IN) to the line(s) configured in DMX outputs and thus merge them.

The merged DMX levels are compared and the highest is retained. We are talking about HTP (Highest Takes Priority).

Maintain manual control on some circuits with an external DMX console.

Create a multi-zone system by merging several cascading interfaces to obtain only one common DMX line.

💮 In / Out Config	Clock §	දි Options	Master	/ Slave	Commands	Zones	
	In / Out Config :	ABCD Out			✓ Merge Dm:	x In / Dmx Out	?
	DMX A :	U1 -	Channels :	512			
	DMX B :	U1 -	Channels :	512	<b>-</b>		
	DMX C :	U2 🔻	Channels :	192	<u> </u>		
	DMX D :	U3 🔻	Channels :	64			
	ArtNet / sACN :	U1 -	<===>	U2			

Assign any universe of the software to any DMX line assigned to output, choosing line by line (U1, U2...).

Optimize the size of shows saved in memory by reducing the number of circuits per universe depending on the channels used.

**Example:** If 150 channels are used in the show, select only the nearest higher value, here 192.

### Art-Net/sACN universe range:

Define the starting universe and the finish universe to write in memory on an external SD card for an Art-Net/sACN show.

Cf: "Saving Art-Net or sACN to an external SD card"

### **Options tab**

🕑 In / Out Config 🕒 Clock	හි Options 🗖 Ma	aster / Slave C	ommands 🗍 Zones
Turn off LED o	display after 4s	?	Select Dimmer channels
Trigger delay (Bo	unce): 500 ms	?	Scroll time : +1 🔹 ?
(?	Default start scene	Dimmer (DMX In)	Direct DMX levels (0-255)
Zone A :	Scène 1 🛛 🔻		
Zone B :			
Zone C :			
Zone D :			
Zone E :			

For devices with an LED display, turn it off after 4 seconds of inactivity by checking the option.

Select a default scene to play automatically after the interface is turned on (with USB or external power supply). For multi-zones devices it is possible to set a default scene for each area.

**Note:** The selected default start scene loses its priority if another scene uses the "Restore if power off" option.

Cf: "Advanced trigger options"

Configure the "Select Dimmer channels" option to select separately the Dimmer or RGBW light intensity channels that will be controlled directly by Dimmer mode, dry contacts or via the infrared remote control.

					8			٥	10		12	13	14	15	18		18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	28	27	28	29	30		32				_
33	34	35	38		28	39	40	41	42	43	12	45	48		48	11	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57	58	59	80	61	62	63	84	$\odot$	Unive	ers	
65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75	78	 77	78	79	 80	81	80	83	84	85	88	87	88	89	90	91	92 92	93	94	95	96	1	2	3	4
97	00		100	101	102	103	104	105	106	107	108	109	110		112		114	115	116	117	118	119	120	121	122	123	124	125	126	127	128	H	⊢	Ē	<u> </u>
97 129	130	131	132	133	134	135	198	137	138	139	140	141	142	143	144	145	146	147	148	149	150	151	152	153	154	155	158	125	158	159	160	5	6	7	8
	162	163	164	165	186	167	168	169	170	171	172	173	174	175	176	140	178	179	180	181	182	183	184	185	186	187	188	189	190	191	192	9	10	11	12
161 193	102	195	109	100	100	107	200	201	202	203	204	205	206	207	208	209	210	211	212	213	214	215	216	217	218	219	220	221	222	223	224	H		$\square$	
			190	197	196	199	200																				220	253	254	223	224	13	14	15	16
225	226	227	228	229	230	231	232	233	234	235	236	237	238	239	240	241	242	243	244	245	246	247	248 280	249 281	250 282	251 283	202	285	286	200	200	17	18	19	20
257	258	259	280	261	262	263	204	265	286	267	268	269	270	271	272	273	274	275	276	277	278	279					204	317	318			H			
289	290	291	292	293	294	295	290	297	298	299	300	301	302	303	304	305	306	307	308	309	310	311	312	313	314	315	316		318	319	320	21	22	23	24
321	322	323	324	325	326	327	328	329	330	331	332	333	334	335	336	337	338	339	340	341	342	343	344	345	346	347	348	349		351	352	25	26	27	28
353	354	355	356	357	358	359	380	361	362	363	364	365	386	367	368	369	370	371	372	373	374	375	376	377	378	379	380	381	382	383	384	H			
385	386	387	388	389	390	391	392	393	394	395	396	397	398	399	400	401	402	403	404	405	408	407	408	409	410		412	413	414	415	416	29	30	31	32
417	418	419	420	421	422	423	424	425	426	427	428	429	430	431	432	433	434	435	438	437	438	439	440	441	442	443	444	445	446	447	448				
449	450	451	452	453	454	455	458	457	458	459	460	461	462	463	484	465	488	487	468	469	470	471	472	473	474	475	476	477	478	479	480				
481	482	483	484	485	486	487	488	489	490	491	492	493	494	495	498	497	498	499	500	501	502	503	504	505	508		508	509	510	511	512				
						Se	elect (	Dimme	er cha	annels	;														Sele	ct RG	BW d	hann	els						

### **Commands tab**

Assign external contacts, among those available for your device, to trigger some standalone mode commands: Dimmer +, Dimmer -, Blackout, Speed +, Speed -, Pause, Scene +, Scene - and Zone.

**Note:** Be careful not to use the same command trigger as the one used for a scene and vice versa.Cf: "Choice of triggers by external contacts"

The last assigned contact will take priority over the other.

Use 2 types of Short/Hold contact and thus assign an identical contact to 2 different commands. (here as an example with the Dimmer +; Dimmer -)

💮 In / Out	Config	٥	lock 🔯	Options		Master / Slave	Comma	ands 📃 Z	ones	
									Short	Hold
Stop :			Pause :		•	Blackout :		Dimmer +:	04-C/T3 🔻	
Zone A :	01 - A / T	1 -	Zone C :	03	•	Zone E :		Dimmer - :		04-C/T3 🔻
Zone B :	02 - B / T	2 🔻	Zone D :		•	Zone G :		Speed + :		
Scene + :	06		Scene - :	07	•			Speed - :		
Zone + :		•	Zone - :	01-A/T1 02-B/T2				Color +:		•
				03 04 - C / T3 05				Color - :	<b></b>	-
				06 07				CCT +:	<b></b>	-
				08 - D / T4 09	-			CCT - :	-	•

# Scenes selection and configuration

$\times$	2 ● »)					Device	Triggers	Time triggers	Schedule activation				
	Name	Duration	Properties	Triggers	Zone								
1 🗸	Scène 1	00m 04s 000	00:00:000 #00	•	Α								
2 🗸	Scène 2	00m 09s 960	00:00:000 #00	$\odot$	А								
3 🗸	Scène 3	00m 11s 000	00:00:000 #00	<u> </u>	A								
4 🗸	Scène 4	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A				RS232	?	Restore if power off	?	
5 🗸	Scène 5	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A								
6 🗸	Scène 6	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A		11.						
7 🗸	Scène 7	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A		))				Play in priority	?	
8 🗸		00m 03s 000	00:00:000 #00	<u> </u>	A								
9 🗸		00m 03s 000	00:00:000 #00		В		_/_			?			
10 🗸		00m 02s 400	00:00:000 #00		C					$\smile$			
11 🗸	Scene 4	00m 09s 960	00:00:000 #00		D		$\bigcirc$						
							$\odot$						
						_	_						-1-0
						∎ ►	<b>*</b>			1%			<b>T</b> 4)
							~~~						<b>-</b> 1117

Check to select the scenes to write in memory and assign triggers from those available by your device.

# Choice of triggers

In the "Triggers" tab, select and assign different types of triggers.

Device	Triggers	Time triggers	Schedule activation			
	0		RS232	?	Restore if power off	?
	))				Play in priority	?
				~		
	_/ _			?		
	$\mathbf{\mathbf{\hat{o}}}$					
	$\mathbf{O}$					

### Infrared Trigger

For devices that do not have this trigger option an Infrared kit is available containing an IR receiver and a remote control.

Cf: "use of the remote control by infrared"

Select a scene from the list and assign it a remote control button from the 15 available buttons.





Automatically assign buttons to all scenes in the list by clicking the Infrared icon on the scene list toolbar.



### **External contacts Trigger:**

Depending on the interface, several external contacts are available: Trig A, Trig B, Trig C ..., and the Use a multiplexing interface to extend the number of contacts when possible.(from 3 to 7; from 4 to 15; from 5 to 31 ...) Contact reaction time, 5ms (0.005s)



Example of multiplexing system with 4 external contacts extended to 15.



Select a scene from the list and assign it a contact from those available through the interface.

### **Option of triggers**



Select a trigger option from the drop-down menu next to it.

**On:** Activating the contact makes the scene play (the only trigger action is to start the scene). **On/Off:** Activating the contact starts the scene, subsequent activation stops the scene.Each trigger action will reverse the stage state (start/stop).

**Auto Release:** The scene is played only while the contact is enabled. When the contact is released, the scene stops.

**Restart:** If the scene is playing, enabling the contact restarts the scene from its beginning. If the scene is not being played, it will start. External contact reaction time: 8 ms (0.008 s) / time between 2 contacts: 500 ms (0.5 s)

If something plays: Play the selected scene if a scene is already played.

If nothing plays: Play the selected scene if nothing plays.

These two interdependent options allow the same contact to be assigned to two different scenes.

**Note:** Be careful not to use the same scene trigger as the one used for a command and vice versa.Cf: *"Order tab"* 

The last assigned contact will take precedence over the other.

Automatically assign external contacts to all scenes in the list by clicking the external contact icon on the scene list toolbar.



### Advanced trigger options.



### Restore after power off

By checking this option in the "Triggers" tab, the selected scene takes priority on the boot scene (see "Options tab") when the power supply is restored.

If all scenes have the option checked, the last active scene is replayed.

### Play in priority

By checking this option in the "Triggers" tab, the selected scene plays continuously until its end, without taking into account other triggers, except for time triggers and physical buttons on the device.

# Save in memory option

Check scenes that need to be saved in memory.

× ☑ ● ୬)								
		Name	Duration	Properties	Triggers	Zone 🏛		
1	<	Scene 1	00m 14s 400	00:05:000		A		
2	<	Scene 3	00m 00s 480	00.03:000 ++00		A		
3	<	Scène 4	00m 05s 720	00.05:000 #1		A.		
4		Scene 5	00m 18s 000	00.07:000 #1		A		
5		Scene 6	00m 05s 000	00.00:000 #00		A		
6	<	Scene 6_copy_1	00m 05s 000	00.00:000		А		
7		Scene 6_copy_2	00m 07s 000	00.00:000		A		
8		Scene 6_copy_3	00m 07s 000	00:00:000		A		
9		Scene 6_copy_4	00m 07s 000	00.00:000		A		
10		Scene 6_copy_5	00m 07s 000	00.00:000		A		
11		Scene 6_copy_6	00m 07s 000	00.00-000 #00		A		
12		Scene 6_copy_7	00m 07s 000	00.00:000 #00		A		
13		Scene 6_ccpy_8	00m 07s 000	00.00-000 #00		A.		
14		Scene 6_copy_9	00m 07s 000	00.00:000		A		
15		Scene 16	00m 03s 000	00:05:000 #3		A		
16		Scene 17	00m 08s 000	00.00:000 #2		A		
17		Scene 18	00m 03s 200	00.00:000 #40		Α.		
18		Scene 19	00m 13s 000	80.00-000 #2		A		
19		Scene 20	00m 04s 000	00.00:000 #2		A		
20		Crone 21	0.0m 02- 500	00-00-000 then				

### Click on the "Write in Memory" button





Select the desired option in the Scenes Write window.

### **Basic backup**

**Write standalone configuration:** Change only certain settings in the configuration of a show already written in memory. Reduces backup time.

Write to Memory: Default backup in the internal memory of the device.

## Save to an internal and external micro SD card

### For devices with a micro SD port.



Save scenes to a micro SD card (Class 10) installed in the device's SD card reader or in the computer drive. The card must be CLASS 10, formatted in FAT or FAT 32 with a maximum capacity of 256 GB. It is recommended to use the largest allocation unit size available when formatting.

Write to the SD card of the device: SD card installed in the interface drive

Write to an external SD card: SD card connected to the computer Note: Save to the root directory of the SD card.

# Backing up Art-Net or sACN to an external SD card

For devices with a micro SD port and an Ethernet port.



**Art-Net -** Write to an external SD card: Save up to 8 universes only on micro SD to render an Art-Net or sACN show independently.

Set the universe range in the IN/OUT config tab.Cf:

Pre-commissioning verification:

Connecting the RJ45 cable before power on.

Connection to the local network.Cf: "Ether Ethernet connection and configuration"

Configuring the device in Art-net or sACN mode via the software or DeviceTool.

**Note:** Once in Art-Net (Ar) or sACN (AC) mode, the interface is no longer visible on the local network.

In Art-Net the interface will use Broadcast to play the show on the network.

In sACN the interface will use the Multicast to play the show on the network.

# Stand-alone use

### Switch to stand-alone mode

The interface switches to standalone mode automatically after 5 seconds after power on and if no software connection is made.

### **External and USB power supply**

The external power supply is only used for "Autonomous" mode.But it is possible to connect a USB cable and power supply at the same time, even if this configuration is not recommended.If a USB cable is connected to the interface when running in standalone mode, the device will detect a possible connection to a computer but this will not affect the scenes that play.

### How to use IR Remote

Infrared Remote triggers work in Stand Alone and in Live mode when "Get Stand Alone Triggers" is

checked in software option window, at the bottom of "Device" section.

Get Stand Alone triggers

### **Previous Remote Control Unit (Before 2022)**

### Functioning for Interfaces without Mode and older interfaces.



- 1. Scene trigger buttons (1 to 10) assigned via the software.
- 2. Scene selector, next or previous.
- 3. Speed value, increase & decrease
- 4. Dimmer value, increase & decrease
- 5. **Blackout:** Stops the current scene and plays the scene 00. All DMX levels are set to zero.
- 6. Pause: Freezes the current scene in its state

### **Functioning for Interfaces with Modes**



- 1. Scene trigger buttons (1 to 10) assigned via the software
- 2. **Increase or decrease** the value of the selected mode: Scene +/-, Dimmer +/-, Speed +/-, Color +/-.
- 3. Color mode
- 4. Scene mode
- 5. Dimmer mode
- 6. Speed mode
- 7. **Blackout:** Stops the current scene and plays the scene 00. All DMX levels are set to zero.
- 8. Pause: Freezes the current scene in its state.

### New Remote Control Unit (2022)

### **Functioning for Interfaces with Modes**



- Scene trigger buttons (1 to 15) assigned via the software Trigger 1 to 15 with 1 Zone. Trigger 1 to 9 with several Zone.
- 2. **5 Control Zones** available: A, B, C, D, E and Global Zone: [] to trigger each Zone in the same time.
- 3. **Increase or decrease** the value of the selected mode: Scene +/-, Dimmer +/-, Speed +/-, Color +/-.
- 4. Release Color mode
- 5. Color mode
- 6. Scene mode
- 7. Dimmer mode
- 8. Speed mode
- 9. **Blackout:** Stops the current scene and plays the scene 00. All DMX levels are set to zero.
- 10. Pause: Freezes the current scene in its state.

### **Functions descriptions**

**Scene +/-:** Each push selects the next or previous scene of the current Zone. Scene are play immediately.

**Master Dimmer:** Increases or decreases the RGB, CMY and dimmer channels of the current zone. The CMY, RGB, Dimmer channels are defined in the Profile of the fixture and the stand-alone mode.

**Scene Speed:** Increases or decreases the speed of the current scene in the current zone. A different speed can be chosen separately for each scene.

**Zones:** Choose a Zone (A,B,C,D,E or Global []). Then select a scene or mode to trig in the selected zone.

Modes: Select a Mode from Speed, Dimmer, Color or Scenes, then use +/- to change values.



### **IR receiver box**



To use the optional IR remote control, an external circuit with an IR receiver must be connected via an RJ45 port or via the stand-alone interface terminal block.

### **IR PCB pinout**

-With RJ45 cable, use pins: #8 = Ground; #4 = IR data; #7 = 5V. -With connectors, use pins: O = IR data; V = 5V; G = Ground.

Maximum distance from cable to receiver is approx. 20 m.

### Light sensor

The light sensor integrated in the IR box circuit **only works with hourly triggers**. The external card must be connected via the RJ45 port or via the terminal block. Light sensitivity must be set in the software.

See "Time-controlled scenes".

# Housing dimensions in mm.

# Front



# Back



# Tops





The device is not detected by the DeviceTool or	Unplug to restart the device.		
USB software.	Change the USB cable		
	Unplug to restart the device.		
The device is not detected by the DeviceTool or	Change the Ethernet cable		
Ethernet software.	Check the selection of the Ethernet network		
	before opening.		
	Check the mode of communication with LED		
	signals and reconfigure the device via USB if		
	necessary		
	Verify that the IP addresses and subnet mask		
	are configured correctly.		
	Update the firmware of the device via the		
The device is not detected on the network.	software or DeviceTool		
The device is not detected on the network.	Update the software with the latest version and		
	try again		
	Open and allow communication ports used by		
	the device. Some local networks may require		
	manual opening of the following UDP Ports:		
	8011 + 8012 for communication between the		
	device and software.		
	Check the firmware and software version.		
	Device with display		
	When working properly: The screen indicates		
	"ON" when connected to the computer, then it		
	displays "SA" and "00" (or a scene number).		
	When you start the software and the interface		
	is properly detected, you should see "PC".		
	Device without display		
The device is blocked in standalone mode and	Check the mode of communication with LED		
it cannot establish communication with the	signals.		
software.	During the 5 seconds before the device		
	switches to standalone mode:		
	1) Create a small show with a scene (in demo		
	mode) and close the software after saving the		
	show.(optional)		
	2) Unplug the interface.		
	3) Start the software and wait for the software		
	to be on the 1st page of the wizard with the		
	selected USB device.		

	4) Plug in the interface and start the software			
	IMMEDIATELY .Simply confirm all the steps of			
	the wizard. You should see the interface well			
	detected and listed in the wizard.			
	5) Open the software and quickly write the			
	small show in memory.			
	Writing a new scene cleanses memory and			
	does not allow the infinite loop to reproduce.			
	Before commissioning, plug the RJ45 cable			
	before powering.			
	Replugging the power supply			
	Insert the SD card again (Reset)			
The device does not restore the Art-Net or	Device with display			
sACN show.	Select ArtNet (Ar) mode again, sACN (AC) in			
SACIN SHOW.	the advanced F3 menus of the interface (mode			
	button).			
	Device without display			
	Select ArtNet, sACN mode again via the			
	software or DeviceTool.			

If you experience unlisted issues, contact your seller or manufacturer directly to indicate your problem and receive a solution.

Product design and specifications are subject to change without prior notice.

Older devices (sold before 2020) are not compatible with PRO DMX version 2

# LT512S

# USB连接DMX操作界面



数据表以及快速入门指南

目录

介绍	
主要特点	1
硬件技术规格	1
软件选项	2
机盖连接	
前端控制面板	
后端控制面板	
USB 驱动软件安装	4
多种USB连接	4
单机模式设置	
设备配置	
输入/输出切换	
"合并DMX输入/DMX 输出"选项	
Art-Net/sACN 适用范围	
选项切换	
指令选项卡	
场景选择和配置	9
触发器选项	
红外线触发	
外部触点触发:	
高级触发选项	
断电恢复	
优先播放	
保存到本地内存的选项	
基础备份	
保存到自带和外部微型 SD 卡	
將 Art-Net 或 sACN 备份到外部 SD 卡 单机模式使用	
中机换式 C 几 切换到单机模式	
外部和USB电源	
如何使用红外遥控器	
先前遥控单元(早于2022年)	
用于无模式和更早之前的界面	
用于有模式的界面	
新遥控单元(2022年)	
用于有模式的界面	
功能描述	
红外代码	
红外接收盒	
机壳单位以毫米计	
前端	
后端	
顶端	
故障种类及排除	20

介绍

我们为基础入门级预算以及寻求简单易操作多路数字传输(DMX)控制系统的用户提供专业的 全套设备解决方案。

全新设计的铝合金机壳,带有精湛的面漆处理工艺以及更新的电子器件,此器件配备最新的2022年 软件和更早版本的LED播放器和Pro多路数字传输(以下都称作DMX)

本USB转换成DMX控制器自带USB的5伏特电源供应以及全套设备所含可选用的红外线远程控制,此控制器能够提供三种触发选项并且配备5伏特直流电输入。这为简单的整合项目提供了最佳的硬件设备。目的

本技术手册旨在开发由设备交互界面所控制的选项,这些交互界面一般存在单机模式中。关于软件选项,请参照软件手册。

### 主要特点

### 硬件技术规格

输入	通过USB-C接口接入USB2.0
DMX输出数量	通过三芯卡侬头(XLR)最多可128或512(五芯卡侬头可选)
DMX速度	1至45赫兹 (Hz)、MaB、Bk
单机模式	支持128或512通道以及更小DMX通道(16位)
内存	支持, 200 Kb
内存容量	200至2000存储节
红外线接收器	支持,可选配红外遥控触发器
红外线选项	场景选择、播放、暂停、加速、调光器、下一个、停电
干触点触发	支持,3个智能触点端口,最多7个操作动作
电源输入	5伏, 0.1安
高压保护	支持
机壳	强韧铝合金
红外遥控	可选项,需IR工具才可实现
USB 模式	支持
信号状态显示	USB LED
电源	0,5 W
CPU	32位
尺寸	高: 55毫米(2.16英寸)/宽: 50毫米(1.96英寸)/深: 37.5 毫米(1.47英寸)
净重	0.085公斤
毛重	0.15公斤
颜色	黑色

防护等级	IP40
最佳使用环境	室内
储存环境	请放置于干燥通风处
兼容性	8位和16位DMX 512灯具
运行温度	-25至+70摄氏度
认证	欧盟CE认证、欧盟RoHS、美国联邦FCC
国际质保期	支持1年

# 软件选项

播放器、PRO、PRO2	128或者512带电通道以及单机模式
DMX 3D查看器工作室	支持实时在线观看
电脑端Art-Net输出	不支持
	支持微软Windows, 苹果MAC Os X (10.6和更高版本)以及 Linux(64位)
免费软件更新	支持

# 机壳连接

### 前端控制面板



三芯卡侬 (XLR) 接口
1:接地
2:数据 3:数据+
红外线LED接收器 (可选远程单元)

后端控制面板



USB-C 接口 (5V 直流电输入)

USB绿色LED显示灯

带螺钉的接线端子接口 1到3接口:分别是触发器A,B,C 4接口:触发器 A,B,C,5伏直流电输出 5接口:5伏直流电输入,0.1安或者供电 电压(V+) 6接口:接地(V-)

### USB LED信号灯工作状态

关闭	接口未通电(检查USB数据线或电源)
开启	接口供电,无场景运行
快速闪烁	软件和USB连接运行
慢速闪烁	单机模式和场景运行
超高速闪烁	在引导加载程序模式下,等待加载新固件

### USB驱动软件安装

安装USB驱动软件是为了激活驱动设备同时更改设置。 若使用Windows系统安装,在安装的结束阶段需要求安装USB驱动软件。 使用Mac和Linux系统,将自动安装USB驱动软件。

USB驱动软件验证

打开Windows设备管理器,检查"USB总线控制器"的设备图标是否可见。

Contrôleurs de bus USB
 DMX512 Stand Alone Device

若驱动软件尚未安装,Windows设备管理器将显示出带黄色警告标志的设备。

Universal Serial Bus controllers
 Q DMX512 Stand Alone Device

若使用Mac OS系统,只需简单检查USB设备树状图,查看"DMX 512 单机设备"。在 Linux系统中,只需输入"1susb"指令以列表的形式查看"DMX 512 单机设备"。

成功安装控制软件以及驱动器的后续操作

- 将USB数据线插入此设备
- 启动设备工具或者相应软件,选择"开启USB设备"或者"USB",查看驱动器是否成功安装。

所有已连接和检测到的设备,都将以列表形式显示出来。

# 多种USB连接



# 单机模式设置

在控制软件运行的单机模式下, 的场景触发器。 回語牌

机据可用选项配置设备,选择并配置要写入内存

设备配置

### 输入/输出切换

从下拉菜单中选择接口的 DMX 输入/输出配置

💮 In / Out Config	Clock	🕄 Options 「 Master / Slave –' – Commands 📄 Zones
	In / Out Config :	A Out Merge Dmx In / Dmx Out
	DMX A :	A Out AB Out
		A Out / D In ABC Out
	DMX B :	ABCD Out AB Out / D In
	DMX C :	ABC Out / D In
	DMX D :	Channels : 🔫
	ArtNet / sACN :	U1 • <===> U2 •

若已连接的设备配备有1.2或4条DMX线路,将显示所有可用的配置。

- A OUT -在 DMX 线路上分配1个输出域,对于具有超过1条 DMX 线路的设备,在每条线路 上复制相对应的输出域。
- AB OUT -在 2 条 DMX 线路上分配1个不同的输出域, 对于具有4条 DMX 线路的设备,将前 2 条线路复制到余下 2 条线路上。
- A OUT/B或 DIN -在第一条线路上分配 1个输出域,用最后一条 DMX线路作为其输入端。
- ABC OUT -在前 3 条DMX 线路上分配1个不同的域输出。
- ABCD OUT -在4 条DMX 线路上分配1个不同的域输出。
- AB OUT / D IN -在前 2 条线上分配1个不同的输出域,用最后一条 DMX线路作为其输入 端。
- ABC OUT / D IN -在前 3 条线上分配1个不同的输出域,并使用最后一条 DMX 线作为 DMX 输入。

#### 合并 DMX 输入/DMX 输出"选项

自带2或4条以上DMX线路接口的设备才有这一选项。 启用该选项,将配置为输入(IN)的线路重新整合到 DMX 输出端中配置的线路中,达到合并 目的。比较合并后的 DMX 级别,保留最高级别。 号京级别优先(HTP) 程序项目正在探讨中

最高级别优先(HTP)程序项目正在探讨中。

使用外部 DMX 控制台对某些电路进行手动控制。

通过合并多个级联接口来创建多区域系统,获得有且仅有一条的公共 DMX 线路。

💮 In / Out Config	Clock 2	ටී Options	Master	/ Slave	Comm	ands	Zones		
	In / Out Config :	ABCD Out			- Mei	rge Dmx	In / Dmx Out	1	
	DMX A :	U1 -	Channels :	512	-				
	DMX B :	U1 -	Channels :	512	-				
	DMX C :	U2 👻	Channels :	192	•				
	DMX D :	U3 👻	Channels :	64					
	ArtNet / sACN :	U1 -	<===>	U2	•				

将软件的任一域分配给任一指定的DMX线路输出,逐线路选择(U1、U2...) 根据已使用的通道,减少每个域的电路数量,优化内存中保存的程序大小。

例子: 若程序中已使用150个通道, 仅选择最接近的较高值, 此例子为 192。

#### Art-Net/sACN域范围:

定义要写入Art-Net/sACN程序的外部SD卡内存中的起始域和结束域。

请参见《保存Art-Net或sACN到外部SD卡》

### 设置选项卡

တ် In / Out Config ပြင်လ န	ටී Options 🛛 🧖 Ma	ster / Slave C	Commands 🔲 Zones	
Turn off LED di	splay after 4s	?	Select Dimmer channels	
Trigger delay (Bour	nce) : 500 ms	?	Scroll time : +1 • ?	
0	Default start scene	Dimmer (DMX In)	Direct DMX levels (0-255)	
Zone A :	Scène 1 🔹			
Zone B :				
Zone C :				
Zone D :				
Zone E :				

对于带有 LED 显示屏的设备,勾选该选项,4 秒内无反应关闭LED显示器(Turn off LED display after 4s)

在接口打开(带USB或外接电源)后选择默认场景自动播放。对于自带多区域的设备,每个区域都可以设置默认场景。

注意:若另一个场景使用"断电时恢复"选项,则所选的默认开始场景将失去其优先级。 参见:《高级触发选项手册》

配置"选择调光器器通道"(Select Dimmer channels)选项,以单独选择调光器器或 RGBW 光强 度通道,这些通道将直接由调光器器模式、干触点或通过红外遥控器控制。

					8			9	10		12	13	14	15	16		18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	32				
8	34	35	38	37	38	39	40	41	42	43	44	45	48		48	40	50		52		54	55	56	57	58	59	20 60	61	62	63	84	$\odot$	Unive	ers	
35	66	67	68	69	70		72		74	75	78		78	79	 80	45 81	82	83	84	85	86	87	88	89	90	91	90 97	93	94	95	96	1	2	3	4
7		- 00	100	101	102	103	104	105	109	107	108	109	110		412	113	114	115	116	117	118	110	120	121	122	123	124	125	128	127	128	H	-	Ľ	Ľ
" 29	130	131	132	133	134	135	136	137	138	139	140	141	142	143	144	145	146	147	148	149	150	151	152	153	154	155	156	157	158	159	160	5	6	7	8
29 81	162	163	184	165	166	167	168	169	170	171	172	173	142	143	176	140	178	179	180	181	182	183	184	185	186	187	188	189	190	191	192	9	10	11	12
	104	105	104	100	100	199	200	201	202	203	204	205	206	207	208	209	210	211	212	213	214	215	216	217	218	219	220	221	222	223	224	H		H	
33	194	190	190	197	190																						252	253	254	255	256	13	14	15	16
	226	227	228	229	230	231	232	233	234	235	236	237	238	239	240	241	242	243	244	245	246	247	248	249	250	251				200	200	17	18	19	20
57	258	259	200	201	262	263	264	265	266	267	268	269	270	271	272	273	274	275	276	277	278	279	280	281	282	283	284	285	286			H		H	
89	290	291	292	293	294	295	296	297	298	299	300	301	302	303	304	305	308	307	308	309	310		312	313	314	315	316	317	318	319	320	21	22	23	24
	322	323	324	325	326	327	328	329	330	331	332	333	334	335	336	337	338	339	340	341	342	343	344	345	346	347	348	349	350	351	352	25	26	27	28
53	354	355	356	357	358	359	360	361	362	363	364	365	366	367	368	369	370	371	372	373	374	375	378		378	379	380	381	382	383	384	H			
85	386	387	388	389	390	391	392	393	394	395	396	397	398	399	400	401	402	403	404	405	406	407	408	409	410		412	413	414	415	416	29	30	31	32
	418	419	420	421	422	423	424	425	426	427	428	429	430	431	432	433	434	435	438	437	438	439	440	441	442	443	444	445	448	447	448				
49	450	451	452	453	454	455	456	457	458	459	460	461	462	463	464	465	466	467	468	469	470		472	473	474	475	476	477	478	479	480				
81	482	483	484	485	486	487	488	489	490	491	492	493	494	495	496	497	498	499	500	501	502	503	504	505	506	507	508	509	510		512				
Select Dimmer channels Select RGBW channels							alacti	Dimm	er ch	annal		_	_	_	_	_									Sele	ct RG	BW d	hann	els						

### 指令选项卡

在此设备的可选用外部触点中指派触点,以触发某些单机模式指令:调光器器 +、调光器器 -、停 电、速度 +、速度 -、暂停、场景 +、场景 - 和区域。

提示:请注意不要使用与场景相同的指令触发器,反之亦然。参见:外部触点选择触发器 最后指定的触点将优先于其他触点。

使用 2 种类型的点控或长按触点,从而将相同的触点分配给2个不同的命令。 以下图示是以调光器+(Dimmer +)调光器-(Dimmer -)为例

🕑 In / Out	Config (	٥C	lock 🔯	Options		Master / Slave	Comma	ands 📃 Z	ones	
									Short	Hold
Stop :		•	Pause :		•	Blackout :	-	Dimmer + :	04-C/T3 🔻	-
Zone A :	01-A/T1	•	Zone C :	03 -	•	Zone E :	-	Dimmer - :	-	04-C/T3 🔻
Zone B :	02 - B / T2	•	Zone D :		•	Zone G :	-	Speed + :	-	-
Scene +:	06		Scene - :	07	-			Speed - :		
Zone +:			Zone - :	01-A/T1 02-B/T2				Color +:		
				03 04 - C / T3 05				Color - :		
				06 07				CCT +:		
				08 - D / T4 09	•			CCT - :		

# 场景选择和配置

$\times$	🗹 💿 ») 🛹					Device	Triggers	Time triggers	Schedule activation				
	Name	Duration	Properties	Triggers	Zone								
1 🗸	Scène 1	00m 04s 000	00:00:000	$\odot$	А								
1 V 2 V 3 V 5 V 7 V 8 V 9 V	Scène 2	00m 09s 960	00:00:000 <b>#</b> oo		A								
3 ✓	Scène 3	00m 11s 000	00:00:000	0	A								
4 √	Scène 4	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A		0		RS232	(?)	Restore if power off	?	
5 🗸	Scène 5	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A								
6 ✓	Scène 6	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00	0	A							0	
7 🗸	Scène 7	00m 02s 000	00:00:000 #00		A		))				Play in priority	?	
8 √	Scène 8	00m 03s 000	00:00:000 #00	0	A								
9 🗸	Scène 2	00m 03s 000	00:00:000	2	В		1_			?			
10 🗸		00m 02s 400	00:00:000 #00	N N	C					<u> </u>			
11 🗸	Scene 4	00m 09s 960	00:00:000 #00	$\bigcup$	D								
							$\odot$						
													1/2
						┣ ►	<b>1</b>			1%			<b>1</b> 0
							∽୷₽			1,0			ᠯᡣᢪ

检查以选择要写入内存的场景,并从设备可用的场景中分配触发器。

### 触发器选择

在"触发器"选项卡中,选择并分配不同类型的触发器。

Device	Triggers	Time triggers	Schedule activatio	n			
	0		RS232		?	Restore if power off	0
	))					Play in priority	0
					0		
	$\odot$						

对于没有此触发选项的设备,可使用自带红外接收器和遥控器的套件。 参照:《红外遥控器的使用》

从列表中选择一个运行场景,并从15个可用按钮中为其分配一个遥控按钮。





通过单击场景列表工具栏上的红外图标,自动将按钮分配给列表中的所有场景。



外部触点触发:

根据接口的不同,可以使用多个外部触点: 触发器 A、触发器 B、触发器C ……,以及尽可能使用多路复用接口来扩展触点数量。(从 3 到 7;从 4 到 15;从 5 到 31 ……)接触反应时间,5毫秒(0.005秒)



左图为多路复用系统示例:将4个外部 触点扩展至15个外部触点。



从列表中选择一个场景,从界面中显示的可用触 点里,为其指派一个触点。

#### 触发器选项



从旁边的下拉菜单中选择一个触发选项。

开启:激活触点使场景运行(启动场景是唯一的触发动作)

开启/关闭:激活触点后会启动场景,后续激活动作会使已启动的场景停止。 每个触发动作都 将会颠倒阶段状态(开始/停止)。

自动释放: 仅当触点启用时才播放场景。释放触点时,场景停止。

重启:若场景正在播放,启用触点则会引发重新启动场景。若场景处于关闭状态,则会自动启动。外部接触反应时间:8毫秒(0.008秒)/次。2个触点之间: 500 毫秒(0.5 秒)

如果正在播放某些内容:若已有所选场景在播放,那么将直接播放所选场景。

如果没有播放任何内容:如果没有播放任何内容,那么将播放选定的场景。

以上非此即彼的两个选项能够将同一触点分配给两个不同的场景。

提示:请注意不要使用与用于场景触发器相同的指令,反之亦然。参见:"指令选项卡" 最后指派的触点将优先于其他触点。

通过点击场景列表工具栏上的外部触点图标,将自动指派外部触点给列表中的所有场景。





### 断电后恢复

通过触发器选项卡,查看并选中断电后恢复(Restore if power off)选项设置,当电源恢复时,所选场景将优先于启动场景(参见设置选项卡)。

若所有场景都设置了该选项,那么最后激活这一选项的场景将会重新播放。

#### 优先播放

通过查看触发器选项卡,选中的场景将持续播放直到结束,在此期间其他触发器将无法播放,除 非在设备上设置时间触发器以及通过物理按键来控制。

# 保存到本地内存的选项

### 查看需要保存到本地内存的场景

>	< 6	Z ● »)		القا ويحجب والت		
		Name	Duration	Properties	Triggers	Zone 📤
1	$\checkmark$	Scene 1	00m 14s 400	00:05:000 #00		A
2	$\checkmark$	Scene 3	00m 00s 480	00.03:000 #00		A
3	V	Scène 4	00m 05s 720	00:05:000 #1		A
4		Scene 5	00m 18s 000	00.07:000 #1		A
5		Scene 6	00m 05s 000	00.00:000 #00		А
6	$\checkmark$	Scene 6_copy_1	00m 05s 000	00.00:000 #00		A
7		Scene 6_copy_2	00m 07s 000	00.00;000		A
8		Scene 6_copy_3	00m 07s 000	00:00:000 #00	1000 C	A
9		Scene 6_copy_4	00m 07s 000	00.00:000 #00		A
10		Scene 6_copy_5	00m 07s 000	00.00:000 #00		A
11		Scene 6_copy_6	00m 07s 000	00.00-000 <b>#</b> oo		A.
12		Scene 6_copy_7	00m 07s 000	00.00:000 #00		A
13		Scene 6_copy_8	00m 07s 000	00.00.000		A
14		Scene 6_copy_9	00m 07s 000	00.00;000 #00		A
15		Scene 16	00m 03s 000	00:05:000 #3		A
16		Scene 17	00m 08s 000	00.00:000 #2		A
17		Scene 18	00m 03s 200	00.00:000 #40		A
18		Scene 19	00m 13s 000	00.00-000 #2		A
19		Scene 20	00m 04s 000	00.00:000 #2		A
20		Cropp 21	00m 02c 600	00:00:000 thes		

点击"写入内存"按钮





在场景写入窗口中选择预期的场景

基础备份

写入单机配置: 仅更改已写入内存显示配置中的某些设置, 来缩短备份时间。

写入内存:默认备份将存入此设备的本地内存中。

保存到内部和外部微型 SD 卡

仅适用于带有微型 SD 端口的设备。



将场景保存到安装在设备 SD 卡读卡器或计算机驱动器中的微型 SD 卡(Class 10)。该卡最低写 入速度必须10Mb/s,格式为 FAT 或 FAT 32,最大容量为 256 GB。建议使用格式化时可用的最大 分配单元大小。

写入设备的SD卡: SD卡安装在接口驱动器中

写入外部 SD 卡: SD卡连接到电脑

注意:保存到SD卡根目录。

### 备份Art-Net或sACN到外部SD卡

仅适用于带有微型 SD 端口和以太网端口的设备。

# ART Save on external SD Card

Art-Net - 写入外部 SD 卡: 在微型 SD 上最多只能保存 8 个域,以单独显示运行 Art-Net 或 sACN 。

在 IN/OUT 配置选项卡中设置域范围。参见:

调试前验证:

在开启电源前连接RJ45网线,连接到本地网络。

参见:《以太网连接和配置》

通过软件或设备工具(DeviceTool) 将设备设置为Art-net或sACN模式。

注意:一旦处于 Art-Net (Ar) 或 sACN (AC) 模式,该接口在本地网络上将不再可见。 处于Art-Net模式中,交互界面将以无线电广播的形式来播放网络上的内容。 在 sACN模式中,交互界面将以多路广播的形式来播放网络上的内容。

# 单机使用

### 切换到单机模式

通电5秒后,若尚未连接到软件,界面将会自动切换到单机模式。

### 外部和USB电源

外部电源仅适用于"自主"模式,这可以同时连接 USB 数据线和电源,但并不建议这样做。在单 机模式下,若 USB 数据线通过接口连接到设备,设备将检测连接某计算机的可能,但这不会影响 场景的播放。

### 如何使用红外遥控器

当打开软件选择窗口,在"设备"设置部分的底部,勾选"启动单机触发器"选项("Get Stand

Alone Triggers")红外远程触发器将以单机和带电模式运行。

先前遥控单元(早于2022年)

#### 适用于无模式和更早之前的界面



- 1. 场景触发按钮(1到10)已通过软件指定。
- 2. 场景选择器,下一个或上一个
- 3. 速度值,增加或减少
- 4. 调光值,增加或减少
- 5. 断电: 立即停止当前场景并播放场景 00。所有的DMX 级别均 需设置为零。

✓ Get Stand Alone triggers

6. 暂停:中止当前场景所处的状态

### 适用于有模式的界面



- 1. 场景触发按钮(1到10)已通过软件指定
- 2. 增加或者减少所选模式的数值:场景(Scene)
   +/-、增光(Dimmer +/-)、速度(Speed +/-)、颜 色(Color +/-)。
- 3. 颜色模式
- 4. 场景模式
- 5. 调光模式
- 6. 速度模式
- 7. 断电: 立即停止当前场景并播放场景 00。所有的DMX 级别均需 设置为零。
- 8. 暂停:中止当前场景所处的状态。

#### 新遥控单元(2022年)

#### 适用于有模式的界面



- 场景触发按钮(1到15)已通过软件设置。触发器1到触发器15在1区域中。触发器1到触发器9涵盖多个区域。
- 2. 5个可用控制区域: A、B、C、D、E以及全域: []同时激 活触发每一个区域
- 4. 释放色彩模式
- 5. 色彩模式
- 6. 场景模式
- 7. 调光模式
- 8. 速度模式
- 9. 断电: 立即停止当前场景并播放场景 00。所有的DMX 级别均需 设置为零。
- 10. 暂停:中止当前场景所处的状态。

### 功能描述

场景:每点击一次将在当前区域内选择下一个或者上一个场景,选中的场景会立即播放。

主调光器:增加或者减少当前区域的调光通道和RGB以及CMY值。RGB、调光通道在基本配置文件和单机模式中定义。

场景速度:增加或减少当前区域中当前场景的速度,可以为每个场景单独选择不同的速度。

区域:选择一个区域(A、B、C、D、E 或全局 []),再选择要在选定区域中触发的场景或模式。

模式:从速度、调光器、颜色或场景中选择一种模式,再使用 +/- 按钮更改值。



### 红外接收盒



若要使用可选的红外遥控器,必须通过 RJ45 端口或通过单机接口端子块连接带有红外接收器的外部电路。

红外PCB引脚排列 关于RJ45数据线,运用管脚: #8 = 接地; #4 = 红外数据; #7 = 5伏 关于连接器,运用管脚: 0=红外数据; V=5伏; G=接地 数据线到接收器的最大距离约为20米。

光传感器

红外盒电路中的集成光传感器仅适用于频繁启动的触发器。外部卡必须通过RJ45端口或通过端子块连接。软件中必须设置光敏感度。

请参阅《时间控制场景》。

# 机壳尺寸以毫米计

# 前端







# 顶端





# 故障种类及排除

设备工具(DeviceTool)或USB软件未检测到该	拔掉电源插头,重启设备。
设备。	更换 USB数据线
设备工具(DeviceTool) 或以太网软件未检测	拔掉电源插头,重启设备。
到该设备。	更换以太网网线
	开启前检查以太网网络的选择
	检查设备与LED信号灯的连接模式。若有必要, 通过 USB 重新配置该设备
	验证 IP 地址和子网掩码是否正确配置。
	通过软件或设备工具(DeviceTool)更新设备固件。
	将软件更新为最新版本并,再试一次。
	打开并允许该设备使用的通信端口。某些本地
网络无法检测到该设备。	网络可能需要手动打开以下 UDP 端口:用于
	该设备和软件连接的8011 + 8012
	检查固件和软件版本。
	带显示屏的设备
	正常工作时:连接到电脑时,其屏幕会显示
	"ON",再显示"SA"和"OO"(或场景编
	号)。当启动软件并且设备能正确检测到接口
	时,将明显显示出"PC"。
	不带显示屏的设备
	检查该设备与LED 信号灯的连接模式。
设备无法成功运行单机模式且无法与软件建立	设备切换到单机模式前 5 秒内:
连接。	1) 创建一个带有场景的小程序(演示模式),
	保存小程序后关闭软件。(可选1)
	2) 拔下接口电源插头。
	3) 启动软件并等待软件出现在向导的第一页,
	再选择所选的USB设备。

	4) 插入接口并立即启动软件。只需确认向导程
	序的所有步骤即可。向导程序将列出检测到的该
	接口。
	5) 打开软件,快速将小程序写入内存中。
	写一个新的场景可以清理内存,但无限循环复制
	无法实现。
	通电调试前,请先插好RJ45网线。
	重新插入电源
	再次插入SD卡(重置)
	带显示屏的设备
	再次选择ArtNet (Ar) 模式, sACN (AC) 在界面
该设备无法恢复Art-Net或sACN显示。	的高级F3菜单(模式按钮)。
	不带显示屏的设备
	通过软件或设备工具 (DeviceTool) 更新
	设备固件。

若您遇到的问题不包括在上述列表中,请直接联系经销商或生产商。详细阐述问题后,将提供 给您解决方案。

产品设计和规格如有变更, 恕不另行通知。

早先版本的设备(在2020年之前销售)与PRO DMX版本2并不兼容